Minutes of the Special Zoom Meeting of the Board
of Directors of District 21 on November 20, 2024

By Ray Yuenger, D21 Secretary

1. Call to Order. President Anne Hollingsworth called the meeting to order at 6:33 PM.

2. Roll Call. Secretary Ray Yuenger called the roll. In attendance were the following
directors (and alternates) from their Units: 473, Donna Neff, Jefri Donovan; 498, Lauren
Rosen; 499, Anne Hollingsworth, Jackie Zayac; 500, Andy Sass; 501, Don Garka; 502,
Grant Vance (late); 503, Dianne Giancarlo; 505, Jim Coke, Katherine Ewing; 506, Tom
Stillman, Gail Gabiati; 507, Lynn Bartz, Ray Yuenger; 508, Melanie Haddad; 509, Jackie
Ortiz; 510, Mary Sievers; 512, Sigrid Price, Helen Bohl; and 524, James Craig; just
enough for a quorum. Also in attendance were Jeff Hack, Anne Wilson, Brenda Hatton,
and Milind Girkar.

3. Minutes. The minutes of the previous Board meeting on September 11, 2024 were
approved as circulated.

4. Nominations. Nominations chair Jackie Ortiz asked for nominations for all the
offices becoming available at the next Board meeting, President, Vice-President,
Treasurer, Secretary, and Executive Committee Officer. Ray welcomed candidates’
statements in advance of the meeting.

5. Treasurer’s report. Ray mistakenly placed this item on the agenda, but the
Treasurer did not have all the information needed to prepare an interim report.

6. The 2025 budgets. The main focus of the special meeting was on the two 2025
budgets for District 21 that the Treasurer, Lynn Bartz, had circulated a week before the
meeting, a 12-page general budget and an 11-page tournament budget covering all four
of the anticipated regionals in 2025 and included in the general budget.

Lynn noted that the Sparks-Reno regional was successful and profitable this year,
netting around $8,000. There was some discussion about the desirability of adding
another face-to-face day to that regional instead of online events for the local players.
Ray, as Parliamentarian, pointed out that special meetings are limited to the announced
agenda and tournament planning was not on the agenda.

Lynn invited questions about the distributed budgets. Anne Hollingsworth established
that GNT was provided for. Grant Vance confirmed that the GNT/NAP budget did not
include any BBO charges. In response to Gail's question, Lynn explained that there is
no separate line item for a Goodwill dinner. It is included in “general and
administration.” Anne Hollingsworth pointed out it was included on the “highlights” page
of the general budget. Anne Wilson confirmed that the general budget without
tournament income reflected a $55,500 shortfall. Lynn pointed out that the highlights
page also explained the shortfall was more than covered by net tournament profit of
$71,500.

When asked about the 2024 budget, Lynn said that we haven’t spent everything
budgeted for member development, such as speakers at clubs and subsidizing teacher

Page 1 of 2



and director training. Jackie O. asked about the current status of the speaker program
that Lori Spaeth used to administer. As a Growth Committee member, Ray answered
that the Committee had discussed updating the list of approved speakers and
increasing the stipends, but those items had remained on the back burner. Lynn said
that in 2024, the expenses had been youth grants and a teacher training program in
Sacramento, after which several certified teachers were reimbursed $75 for teaching a
class. Ray mentioned that at the last Board meeting, Max Schireson had asked for
volunteers for the Growth Committee.

Lynn said that before the Board approved of the 2025 budget, there had to be
discussion of the Pianola proposal that had been circulated to the Board. The written
proposal explained that Pianola had presented an offer whereby for a flat annual fee of
$3,500, District 21 could obtain unlimited use of the Marketing Services mass-email
software for itself and for its 21 Units. Part of that fee would be paid by a little over
$1,800 worth of unused email credits held by D21 and about a dozen units. D21 would
reimburse the units for their unused credits. The units would not need to enter separate
contracts with Marketing Services, instead just providing names of authorized group
email senders in order to have free use of the services.

Lynn explained that the 2025 budget included this $3,500 expense, but that there also
had been recent discussions among the Executive Committee members about adding
this expense in 2024 to enable everyone to immediately use the email services. Lynn
wanted the Board to know that the Executive Committee intended to meet and act in the
next day or two.

Anne H. gave credit to Art Mirin for pursuing this option with Pianola.

**MOTION PASSED A motion to approve the 2025 budget was seconded and passed
without opposition.

Anne mentioned that the next Board meeting was scheduled for January 29. (It has
since been rescheduled to February 5.)

In response to a question from Dan Garka, Lynn and Anne H. explained that as soon as
the Executive Committee approved of the Pianola proposal, D21 would notify each Unit
of their ability to identify users to use the email services.

The meeting was adjourned after 38 minutes.

Page 2 of 2



